#### EXTRACT from

### **Middleton Tyas Parish Council**

#### MINUTES of the PARISH COUNCIL MEETING held in the Memorial Hall on Wednesday 11<sup>th</sup> July 2012 at 7.00 pm

**PRESENT:** Cllrs F Jones, K Etherington, R Congreve; Mrs C Jones (Parish Clerk);

D. Cllr J McMullon; Mrs D Thomas (Village News); Mrs S Baxter (Village Shop);

Mrs Y Nicholson and Mrs S Mahaffy (Jubilee Picnic sub-committee).

#### 1. Apologies

C.Cllr Heseltine; PC John Wilbor.

#### 14. Code of Conduct

1. The Chairman explained that the Parish Council had Resolved at its last meeting to adopt the new NALC Code of Conduct as this was the only Code available to us at that time. Since then, Richmondshire District Council has produced their own version of a new Code of Conduct which Cllr Jones has discussed with Michael Dowson, RDC Democratic Services. RDC would like the new Code of Conduct to be adopted by County, District and Parish Councils to give compatibility across the region and make it easier to monitor and regulate.

It was Resolved to adopt the new RDC Code of Conduct and the Clerk will inform RDC and NALC of this decision.

- 2. The new RDC Code of Conduct requires Councillors to complete a new 'Registration of Personal Interests' form not only for themselves, but also for their 'spouse/partner'. Councillors were reminded that they have 28 days from the date of this meeting in which to return their completed forms, either direct to RDC Democratic Services, or via the Clerk.

  ALL
- 3. The new RDC Code of Conduct also advises that the Parish Council should adopt a new Standing Order stating whether or not a Councillor should leave the meeting room following their declaration of an interest in any item under discussion.

It was Resolved to adopt option B:

"Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest in any business of the Council, the Member must withdraw from that part of the room or chamber where the meeting is considering the business during consideration and voting on the business but may remain in that part of the room or chamber which the public are allowed to occupy."

Christine Jones Middleton Tyas Parish Clerk



## PART 5

# Codes and Protocols

#### RICHMONDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

#### **MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT**

This Code sets out the standards of behaviour required of you whenever you are acting as a Councillor of Richmondshire District Council. This Code also applies to any person appointed as a co-opted member with voting rights on any Committee of the District Council.

You must sign an Undertaking to comply with this Code of Conduct before acting as a Councillor or voting co-opted Member.

The Code has been adopted by the District Council and also requires compliance with the general principles of public life set out in Appendix 3 at the end of the document. The Council has established an Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, consisting of Members of the Council, to deal with any allegations of breaches of the Code.

- 1. You must not treat others with disrespect.
- 2. You must not do anything which may cause the District Council to breach any equality enactment.
- 3. You must not bully or intimidate any person, or attempt to bully or intimidate them.
- 4. You must not do anything which compromises the impartiality of anyone who works for or on behalf of the Authority, or do anything that is likely to compromise their impartiality.
- 5. You must not disclose information which is given to you in confidence or which you believe is of a confidential nature, or ought reasonably to be aware is of a confidential nature, unless:
  - You have the permission of a person authorised to give it; or
  - You are required by law to disclose the information; or
  - You disclose it to a third party for the purpose of obtaining professional advice, provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the information to any other person; or
  - The disclosure is reasonable; and is in the public interest; and is made in good faith; and is only made after having complied with any reasonable requirements of the Council to delay disclosure or to maintain confidentiality.

Before disclosing any information under this paragraph, you must consult the Monitoring Officer and/or the Head of Paid Service.

- 6. You must not prevent another person gaining access to information which that person is entitled to by law.
- 7. You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing the Council into disrepute, or your position as a District Councillor into disrepute.

- 8. You must not use your position as a District Councillor improperly to obtain any advantage or disadvantage for yourself or any other person, or attempt to do so.
- 9. You must not take part in the scrutiny of any decision you have been involved in making except that you may provide evidence or opinion to those undertaking any scrutiny process. For the purposes of this paragraph you do not 'take part' in a scrutiny process if you simply offer evidence or opinion to the scrutiny body and do not participate in its decision.
- 10. You must not accept any gift or hospitality which could reasonably be perceived as creating an obligation upon the Council, or upon yourself as a District Councillor, If you do accept any gift or hospitality which might be attributable to your membership of the Council (other than the refreshments which might usually be expected at a Council meeting or civic function) you must disclose this, or any offer of such gift or hospitality, to the Monitoring Officer.
- 11. You must act in accordance with the Council's guidance or requirements when using the resources of the Council (such as officer time, IT and copying equipment, or physical materials), or when authorising others to use them, and must ensure that those resources are not used improperly for political or other purposes.
- 12. You must have regard to relevant advice given by the Council's Chief Financial Officer or Monitoring Officer when making decisions and must give reasons for those decisions, in accordance with any requirements imposed by statute or the Council.
- 13. You must comply with the following sections of this Code which relate to registering and declaring in meetings certain interests that you may have. This includes complying with any procedure rule adopted by the Council which requires a Member to leave the room during any meeting at which a matter in which they have a disclosable pecuniary interest is being discussed.

#### **INTERESTS**

#### Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

- 14. (1) A pecuniary interest is a "disclosable pecuniary interest" in relation to you if it is of a description specified in regulations (and listed in Appendix 1) and either:
  - (a) it is your interest; or
  - (b) it is an interest of:
    - (i) your spouse or civil partner;
    - (ii) a person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or
    - (iii) a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners;

and you are aware that that other person has the interest.

#### Disclosure of pecuniary interests on taking office

- 15. (1) You must, before the end of 28 days beginning with the day on which you become a member or co-opted member of the Council, notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interests which you have at the time when the notification is given.
  - (2) Where you become a member or co-opted member as a result of re-election or re-appointment, sub-paragraph (1) applies only as regards disclosable pecuniary interests not entered in the Council's register when the notification is given.
  - (3) Where you give a notification for the purposes of sub-paragraph (1), the Monitoring Officer is to cause the interests notified to be entered in the Council's Register of Members' Interests ("the Register") (whether or not they are disclosable pecuniary interests).
  - (4) Subject to paragraph 17 (regarding sensitive interests), you must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new disclosable pecuniary interest or change to any interest already registered, register details of that new interest or change by providing written notification to the Monitoring Officer.

#### Pecuniary interests in matters considered at meetings

- 16. (1) Sub-paragraphs (2) to (4) apply if you:
  - (a) are present at a meeting of the Council, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the Council;
  - (b) have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to be considered, or being considered, at the meeting; and
  - (c) are aware that the condition in paragraph (b) is met.
  - (2) If the interest is not entered in the Council's Register, you must disclose the interest to the meeting, but this is subject to this Code's provisions on sensitive interests.
  - (3) If the interest is not entered in the Council's Register and is not the subject of a pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest before the end of 28 days beginning with the date of the disclosure.
  - (4) You may not:
    - (a) participate, or participate further, in any discussion of the matter at the meeting; or
  - (b) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting; but this is subject to this Code's provisions on dispensations.

#### Sensitive interests

- 17. (1) Sub-paragraphs (2) and (3) apply where:
  - (a) you have an interest (whether or not a disclosable pecuniary interest); and
  - (b) the nature of the interest is such that you and the Monitoring Officer consider that disclosure of the details of the interest could lead to you, or a person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation.
  - (2) If the interest is entered in the Register, copies of the Register that are made available for inspection, and any published version of the Register, must not include details of the interest (but may state that you have an interest the details of which are withheld under section 32(2) of the Localism Act 2011).
  - (3) If paragraph 16(2) applies in relation to the interest, that provision is to be read as requiring you to disclose not the interest but merely the fact that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter concerned.

#### **DISPENSATIONS FROM NON-PARTICIPATION**

- 18. (1) The Council may, on a written request made to the Monitoring Officer by you, grant a dispensation (in accordance with the relevant statutory provisions) relieving you from either or both of the restrictions in paragraph 16(4) in cases described in the dispensation.
  - (2) Paragraph 16(4) does not apply in relation to anything done for the purpose of deciding whether to grant a dispensation under this section.

#### **OFFENCES**

- 19. (1) You commit a criminal offence if, without reasonable excuse, you:-
  - (a) fail to comply with an obligation imposed on you by paragraph 15(1) or 16(2) or (3);
  - (b) participate in any discussion or vote in contravention of paragraph 16(4);
  - (2) You commit an offence if under paragraph 15(1) or 16(2) or (3) you provide information that is false or misleading and you:
    - (a) know that the information is false or misleading; or
    - (b) are reckless as to whether the information is true and not misleading.
  - (3) A person who is guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale.
- 20. If you are in any doubt as to your position under the Code of Conduct, please consult the Monitoring Officer.

#### **DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS**

The pecuniary interests which are specified in regulations as disclosable pecuniary interests are the interests specified in the second column of the Schedule below:

#### SCHEDULE

| Subject   | Prescribed description  |
|---|---|
| Employment, office, trade, profession or vocation | Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.  |
| Sponsorship                                       | Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election expenses of M. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. |
| Contracts   | Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority—  (a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and  (b) which has not been fully discharged.  |
| Land  | Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority.   |
| Licences  | Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.  |

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to M's

knowledge)-

(a) the landlord is the relevant

authority; and

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial

interest.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—

(a) that body (to M's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and

(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

For these purposes:-

"the Act" means the Localism Act 2011;

"body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest" means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest;

"director" includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society;

"land" excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income;

"M" means a member of a relevant authority;

"member" includes a co-opted member (entitled to vote);

"relevant authority" means the authority of which M is a member;

"relevant period" means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives a notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or section 31(7), as the case may be, of the Act (the corresponding provisions in this Code are paragraphs 15(1) and 16(6));

"relevant person" means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of the Act namely:

- M's spouse or civil partner;
- a person with whom M is living as husband and wife; or
- a person with whom M is living as if they were civil partners;

"securities" means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society.

v1.0 2016

#### **OFFENCES**

- (1) You commit a criminal offence if, without reasonable excuse, you:
  - a) fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days of becoming a Member
  - b) fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting even if it is not entered on the Council's register
  - fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable interest not on the register (which is not the subject of a pending notification) within 28 days of the disclosure
  - d) participate in any discussion or vote at a meeting where you have disclosed a pecuniary interest unless you have a dispensation
  - e) provide information relating to disclosable pecuniary interests that is false or misleading or if you are reckless as to whether the information is true and not misleading
- (2) A person who is guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale.

#### THE PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE

The principles of public life apply to anyone who works as a public office-holder. This includes all those who are elected or appointed to public office, nationally and locally, and all people appointed to work in the civil service, local government, the police, courts and probation services, NDPBs, and in the health, education, social and care services. All public office-holders are both servants of the public and stewards of public resources. The principles also have application to all those in other sectors delivering public services.

#### Selflessness

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.

#### Integrity

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.

#### **Objectivity**

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

#### Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.

#### **Openness**

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing.

#### Honesty

Holders of public office should be truthful.

#### Leadership

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.

If you are in any doubt as to your position under the Code of Conduct, please consult the Monitoring Officer.